Worcestershire County Council

Agenda
Cabinet

Thursday, 16 April 2015, 10.00 am
County Hall, Worcester

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 728713 or by emailing
democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk

If you can not understand the contents of this document and do not have access to anyone who can translate it for you, please contact 01905 765765 for help.
A | SR T G wfeier Ry o0 A1 S @92 S S S S To SHfRi6e (8 A1 e, SR i N & 01905 765765 T Wil S| (Bengali)
A - NS ACST A AT R AR R LG AT A BSOS R RS - ST 01005 765765 ZskK(E) - (Cantonese)
WihiS, a0 ARG A SO FEATTAT AR Z Ak FLUEAT A fil ot ik ] G A4 th WRE , 4R 4T 01905 765765 Tk il . (Mandarin)

Polski ezeli nie rozumiejg Parstwo tresci tego dokumentu i nie znajg nikogo, kto mogiby go dla Panstwa przettumaczyé, prosze zadzwoni¢ pod numer 01905 765765 w celu uzyskania pomocy. (Polish)
Portugués. Se nao conseguir compreender o contetdo deste documento e ndo conhecer ninguém que lho possa traduzir, contacte o 01905 765765 para obter assisténcia. (Portuguese)
Espaiiol. Si no comprende el contenido de este documento ni conoce a nadie que puéds traducirselo, puede solicitar ayuda llamando al teléfono 01905 765765. (Spanish)

Turkge. Bu dokiimanin igerigini anlayamazsaniz veya dokimani sizin igin tercime edebilecek birisine ulagamiyorsaniz, litfen yardim igin 01905 765765 numarali telefonu arayiniz. (Turkish)
(Urdu) -cs S -l 5 3 01905 7B5765 3 S 230 p S ol ¢ 55 s € man 518 (ol I Sl pa o pd flans S o 53 padd ) (a1 O sl s s S Y e (S sl ol ol B1 )

(Kurdish) 5 58 61513 5 01905 TE5765 cso e 52 5  jlaled a3 1052 0 %) e 5 o8 CABL Ly o 0 ey spellley g (S5 0 5 o (08B 1 35 o8 3 5ue 59358

Urrdt) 7 gt few enaRE © veWa AW &dt Raw w3 fait wifsd fewadt da ude adt 9, § ferer 303 wEt wgew 99 WA, I fagur @ed Hew BET 01905 765765 '3 @5 adl (Punjabi)

Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk

worcestershire
county council




DISCLOSING INTERESTS

There are now 2 types of interests:
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests'

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)?

e Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain

e Sponsorship by a 3" party of your member or election expenses

e Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares

e Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer)

e Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire.

NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you

WHAT MUST | DO WITH A DPI?
e Register it within 28 days and
e Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting
- you must not participate and you must withdraw.
NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'?
¢ No need to register them but
e You must declare them at a particular meeting where:
Youl/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion.

WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY?
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the

conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public
interest.

DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF | HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI?
Not normally. You must withdraw only if it:
e affects your pecuniary interests OR
relates to a planning or regulatory matter
e AND itis seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

DON'T FORGET

e If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence
and nature — 'as noted/recorded’ is insufficient

e Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda

- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little

e Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000
and disqualification up to 5 years

e Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases.

Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012 WCC/SPM summary/f



Cabinet
Thursday, 16 April 2015, 10.00 am, County Hall, Worcester

Membership: Mr A | Hardman (Chairman), Mr A N Blagg, Mrs S L Blagg,

Mr J P Campion, Mrs E A Eyre, Mr S E Geraghty, Mr M J Hart,

Mrs L C Hodgson and Mr J H Smith

Agenda
Item No Subject Page No
1 Apologies and Declarations of Interest
2 Public Participation
Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Head of
Legal and Democratic Services in writing or by e-mail indicating both the
nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am
on the working day before the meeting (in this case Wednesday 15 April
2015). Further details are available on the Council's website. Enquiries
can also be made through the telephone number/e-mail address listed
below.
3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2015
The Minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2015 have been
previously circulated.
4 Scrutiny Report: Integrated Waste 1-6
5 Resources Report 7-16
NOTES

e Webcasting

Members of the Cabinet are reminded that meetings of the Cabinet are
Webcast on the Internet and will be stored electronically and accessible

through the Council's Website. Members of the public are informed that if they
attend this meeting their images and speech may be captured by the recording

equipment used for the Webcast and may also be stored electronically and

accessible through the Council's Website.

Agenda produced and published by Simon Mallinson, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall,
Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP

To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact Nichola Garner, Committee & Appellate Officer
on Worcester (01905) 766626 or Kidderminster (01562) 822511 (Ext 6626) or minicom: Worcester (01905)
766399 email: ngarner2@worcestershire.gov.uk

All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website.

Date of Issue: Tuesday, 7 April 2015




This page is intentionally left blank



%% worcestershire

countycouncil

Cabinet
16 April 2015

4. SCRUTINY REPORT: INTEGRATED WASTE

Relevant Cabinet
Member

Relevant Officer

Recommendation

Background Information

Terms of Reference

Mr A N Blagg

Director of Business, Environment and Community

1. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for the
Environment recommends that the Cabinet:

() receives the Scrutiny Report on Integrated Waste,
together with the response from the Cabinet
Member with Responsibility for the Environment;
and

(b) notes the Scrutiny Report's findings and
recommendation and adopts the response of the
Cabinet Member with Responsibility as the way
forward.

2. On 16 January 2014 Full Council agreed the following
Notice of Motion:

"It is frequently suggested that large savings can be
achieved by combining District Councils'
responsibility for collection of waste with the County
Council's responsibility for disposal. In view of this
Council requests the Overview and Scrutiny
Performance Board (OSPB) to set up a Task and
Finish Group in conjunction with the Cabinet Member
with Responsibility to investigate the potential of an
integrated refuse collection and disposal service
across the County leading to greater efficiency and
more sustainable outcomes. This review to be
completed by October 2014."

3. On 30 January 2014 the OSPB agreed that a Scrutiny
Task Group should be set up, led by Councillor Ken
Pollock to:

e investigate the potential for introducing an
integrated waste collection and disposal service in
Worcestershire

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 1



Scrutiny
Findings/Conclusions
and Recommendation

e examine potential costs, savings, benefits and
barriers

¢ make recommendations to Cabinet on a way
forward.

4. All of the District Council Overview and Scrutiny
Committees were invited to put forward a member to take
part in the scrutiny, and Clir Neil Laurenson from Worcester
City Council joined the task group.

5. The cost of dealing with municipal waste in the two
counties of Herefordshire and Worcestershire is £57m p.a.
and costs are increasing.

6. At present waste disposal is run by a single company
across the two counties. It has organised itself to optimise
waste disposal activities, principally at Envirosort in Norton
and at the Energy from Waste plant being constructed in
Hartlebury. In addition, it has encouraged route optimisation
between District Councils, and optimal siting of its transfer
stations, taking waste from collection areas to disposal sites.

7. There is already successful joint working between
partners across Herefordshire and Worcestershire and a
commitment to deliver the Joint Municipal Waste
Management Strategy.

8. Options for further integration include the creation of a
Joint Waste Authority or the development of joint waste
collection contracts.

9. While a case could be made for District Councils to
combine their waste collection operations, this would involve
a significant loss of sovereignty over a crucial activity that
has a direct bearing on a council’s standing in the eyes of
the general public. Any joint collection contracts that might in
future be developed would need to enable local flexibility,
but it was concluded that partners' concerns about loss of
sovereignty and weakened accountability could be
overcome with well-designed governance arrangements.

10. Creation of a joint waste authority would enable a more
unified waste minimisation and recycling campaign and
would result in potential savings, but these are likely to vary
amongst partners and a robust business case would be
needed to assess exactly what those savings might be.

11. The examples examined in Somerset and Oxfordshire
demonstrate that while combining operations can bring
financial benefits (E1.7m p.a. in Somerset's case), it is
essential that there is a strong desire from at least one of the
participating authorities for the project to succeed, in order

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 2



Response of the Cabinet
Member

Supporting Information

Contact Points

for it to even be considered.

12. In the case of the six District Councils in Worcestershire,
there are few if any signs that such desire exists to any
realistic extent at present and in consequence it is difficult to
see such a move coming about in the near future. It will be
essential to have political champions across Herefordshire
and Worcestershire to take forward any further joint working.

13. The scrutiny has established that at present, there would
only be a desire to create a joint waste authority in
Herefordshire and Worcestershire if significant savings could
be guaranteed for all partners.

14. Recommendation: Given this situation, it is essential
that an audit is conducted to find out what savings
might be made from integrating waste in the county. It
is recommended that the County Council's Business,
Environment and Community Directorate should
explore whether Government or other funding, e.g. from
the West Midlands Regional Improvement and
Efficiency Partnership, is available for this purpose. If
significant savings could be guaranteed it would be
financially beneficial to come together in the fashion
found to be successful in Somerset.

15. The OSPB endorsed the scrutiny report on 29 January
2015. The report has been circulated separately.

16. The scrutiny process provides for the relevant Cabinet
Member with Responsibility to submit to the Cabinet a
response to the scrutiny report's findings and
recommendation to be considered alongside the Scrutiny
Report.

17. A copy of the response from the Cabinet Member with
Responsibility for the Environment is attached as an
Appendix.

e Appendix - Response of the Cabinet Member with
Responsibility for the Environment

e Integrated Waste Scrutiny Report — previously circulated
and is available in the Member Support area, at County
Hall Reception and on the Council’s website:

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/downloads/file/5286/integrated was
te_services

County Council Contact Points

Worcester (01905) 763763, Kidderminster (01562) 822511
or Minicom: Worcester (01905) 766399

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 3


http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/downloads/file/5286/integrated_waste_services
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/downloads/file/5286/integrated_waste_services

Background Papers

Specific Contact Points

Suzanne O'Leary, Overview and Scrutiny Manager
(01905) 728673
E-mail: so'leary@worcestershire.gov.uk

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Director
of Commercial and Change) the following are the
background papers relating to the subject matter of this
report:

Agenda and Minutes of:

e Council — 16 January 2014
e Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board — 29 January
2015

All of which are available on the Council's website at
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-
services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 4


http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx

Appendix

Response from Councillor Anthony Blagg, Cabinet
Member with Responsibility for Environment

The Cabinet Member notes the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group on
Integrated Waste and thanks them for their work on this issue.

Response: | have responded to the summary of findings and recommendation as
numbered in the original report.

4. “The cost of dealing with municipal waste in the two counties of
Herefordshire and Worcestershire is £57m p.a. and costs are increasing”.

At face value this is an enormous sum to most Members of the County and District
Councils but it does cover every single household in both counties. New house
building and an economic upturn regionally can be seen as some reasons behind
rising waste tonnages and therefore costs but we are acutely aware of the need to
continue our waste minimisation campaigns and to make the waste system as
efficient as possible.

5. “At present waste disposal is run by a single company across the two
counties. It has organised itself to optimise waste disposal activities,
principally at Envirosort in Norton and at the Energy from Waste plant being
constructed in Hartlebury. In addition it has encouraged route optimisation
between District Councils, and optimal siting of its transfer stations, taking
waste from collection areas to disposal sites”.

I Chair the Strategic Waste Management Board Members Group between the
relevant Cabinet Members from Herefordshire and the Worcestershire districts with
their senior waste officers. This has had a successful track record so far in achieving
practical courses of action to improve the overall service. Route optimisation is a
good example of where money has been saved, householders receive a more
efficient service and neighbouring authorities worked together to achieve something
beneficial to all concerned.

6. “There is already successful joint working between partners across
Herefordshire and Worcestershire and a commitment to deliver the Joint
Municipal Waste Management Strategy ”.

See point 5 above. It is also to be noted that we periodically update the Joint
Municipal Waste Management Strategy to make sure that it continues to be fit for
purpose and we plan to look at a refresh in 2015/16.

7. “Options for further integration include the creation of a Joint Waste
Authority or the development of joint waste collection contracts”.

As there is one disposal contract the only scope for more integration is for Districts to
join together in separate contracts or for an overall joint authority to be created
covering collection and disposal. At present there is nothing preventing these
happening in the future and | note the report's information on other joint authorities
where savings have been made.

Page 5



8. “While a case could be made for District Councils to combine their waste
collection operations, this would involve a significant loss of sovereignty over
a crucial activity that has a direct bearing on a council’s standing in the eyes of
the general public”.

| am aware that sovereignty has been mentioned in some quarters but also that
many residents are more concerned that their bins are emptied efficiently than by
what it says on the side of the lorry.

9. “Creation of a joint waste authority would enable a more unified waste
minimisation and recycling campaign and would result in potential savings,
but these are likely to vary amongst partners and a robust business case
would be needed to assess exactly what those savings might be”.

Currently joint working on minimisation relies largely on the goodwill of the respective
authorities and | feel that a single unified message on minimisation and recycling is
necessary. This would come with a joint authority but could come by negotiation with
partners and | agree that the business case should be further developed.

10. “The examples examined in Somerset and Oxfordshire demonstrate that
while combining operations can bring financial benefits (E1.7m p.a. in
Somerset's case), it is essential that there is a strong desire from at least one
of the participating authorities for the project to succeed, in order for it to even
be considered”.

A joint authority would require the consent of the partners.

11. “In the case of the six District Councils in Worcestershire, there are few if
any signs that such desire exists to any realistic extent at present and in
consequence it is difficult to see such a move coming about in the near
future”.

The local government world is evolving rapidly and many district councils are already
looking to work with others inside and outside the counties. | feel that practical
necessity may change this picture.

12. “Recommendation: Given this situation, it is essential that an audit is
conducted to find out what savings might be made from integrating waste in
the County. It is recommended that the County Council's Business,
Environment and Community Directorate should explore whether government
or other funding, e.g. from the West Midlands Regional Improvement and
Efficiency Partnership is available for this purpose. If significant savings
could be guaranteed it would be financially beneficial to come together in the
fashion found to be successful in Somerset”.

| would agree that a further cross-authority audit with District Councils is conducted

on the principle that external funding could be secured as suggested in the
recommendation, as it is well known that our present funding is tight.

Page 6



= worcestershire

Cabinet
16 April 2015

.countycouncil

5. RESOURCES REPORT

Relevant Cabinet
Member

Relevant Officer

Recommendation

Mr A | Hardman

Chief Financial Officer

1. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Finance
recommends to Cabinet that:

(a) his conclusions concerning revenue budget monitoring up
to 28 February 2015 be endorsed;

(b) the current progress regarding the FutureFit programme be
endorsed,;

(c) Council be recommended to approve the use of the
Deprivation of Liberty Standards Grant for 2015/16 and the
additional Delayed Transfers of Care monies, and updates
the revenue budget cash limits accordingly;

(d) his conclusions concerning capital budget monitoring up
to 28 February 2015 be endorsed;

(e) Cabinet notes and endorses the virement of £0.5m for
enabling works recently committed by the Director to
ensure the progression of the Hoobrook Link Road scheme
and approves:

a) an additional £3.5 million facility is set aside in the
Capital Programme for the Hoobrook Link Road
scheme; and

b) such facility be covered by a virement of £3.5 million
from the existing Capital Programme unallocated
contingency;

(f) the Director of Business, Environment and Community be
authorised to take all necessary steps in consultation with
the Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Economy,
Skills and Infrastructure and the Cabinet Member with
Responsibility for Finance to complete the Hoobrook Link
Road scheme within the approved financial parameters;

(9) information in relation to 2015/16 Children's revenue and
capital grants is noted, and updates the revenue budget

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 7



Introduction

Revenue Budget

Monitoring 2014/15
Outturn Forecast as
at 28 February 2015

cash limits and Capital Programme accordingly, and
delegation is provided to the Director of Children's
Services, in consultation with the Cabinet Member with
Responsibility for Children and Families, to allocate the
capital grants to specific schemes; and

(h) the Tenbury Household Recycling Centre be relocated as
set out in this report and full Council be recommended to
approve the planned use of the PFI reserve for this
relocation and to update the Capital Programme
accordingly.

2. This report identifies a forecast year-end financial position for
2014/15 of breakeven on the Council's £332 million revenue
budget. The most significant financial challenge for 2014/15
continues to be Children's Services placements, however, the
financial forecast has stabilised over the last quarter.

3. Anupdate provided on the current financial year's forecast
BOLD savings programme confirms £30.5 million is expected to be
achieved this year, with risks arising on £0.2 million of projects.
These risks are being robustly managed by the Corporate Business
Board.

4. The re-profiling of capital expenditure was reported to Cabinet
in February 2015 and remains generally in line with forecast
expenditure profiles.

5. A number of new revenue and capital grants have been
received and this report recommends their acceptance.

6. An update is provided with regard to the Local Enterprise
Partnership's Hoobrook Link Road Scheme and a recommendation
is made to include within the Capital Programme, as previously
planned, improvements to the Household Waste Site at Tenbury
Wells of £1.5 million.

7. Set out below is the financial performance for the first eleven
months of the year up to 28 February 2015. The County Council's
£332 million revenue budget is forecast to breakeven at the end of
the financial year.

8. The most significant area of financial risk concerns the
Children's Services placement budget. The forecast financial
pressure for 2014/15 has stabilised over the last quarter at £5.2
million, consistent with the financial outturn forecast reported to
Cabinet at the end of January 2015.

9. It should be noted that the service has successfully delivered
an action plan to date in 2014/15 that has reduced the potential
overspend by £4.3million. Continued work is required to ensure that
the service is able to maintain expenditure within the forecast of a
£5.2 million overspend by the end of the financial year. The
financial position of this service area has been and will continue to

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 8



FutureFit
Programme Update

Deprivation of
Liberty Safeguards
(DoLS) Grant
2015/16

be monitored on a weekly basis to ensure all actions are being
delivered to reduce the financial pressure in this area.

10. As aresult of the financial pressures described above all other
areas of the Council have been reviewed to determine the extent to
which these pressures can be supported corporately for the
remainder of the financial year to enable the Council to operate
within its cash limits for 2014/15.

11. To date, the work has identified further savings in Financial
Services that can mitigate all risks in 2014/15. Mitigating savings
continue to be found through reducing the forecast for borrowing
costs in 2014/15. This follows careful consideration of current and
future interest rates together with a continuation of strong cash
balances allowing a deferral of the need to take external borrowing.
Further work is underway to identify further opportunities to mitigate
this financial pressure both within Children's Services as well as all
other parts of the Council.

12. The BOLD savings programme target for 2014/15 is £30.5
million which is forecast to be achieved. This includes £2.6 million
of projects carried forward from previous financial years.

13. Key areas of savings delivered in 2014/15 include:

e £7.7m "Keeping Well" in Adults Social Care and Health;

e £1.9m "The Open Road" — street lighting and highways
commissioning

e £2.5m "Early Help" — commissioning efficiencies

e £1.8m "Improving Educational Outcomes" — establishment of
core Learning and Achievement Service.

e £0.6m "Better Use of Property" — rationalising the property
estate

14. There is a risk to the delivery of £0.2 million of savings. All
projects and risks are robustly managed through the FutureFit
Programme Board.

15. Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) are part of the Mental
Capacity Act 2005 and aim to make sure that people in care homes,
hospitals and supported living are looked after in a way that does
not inappropriately restrict their freedom.

16. The safeguards should ensure that a care home, hospital, or
supported living arrangement only deprives someone of their liberty
in a safe and correct way, and that this is only done when it is in the
best interests of the person and there is no other way to look after
them.

17. There is a requirement under DoLS that deprivation of liberty
should be authorised before it can go ahead. There has been a
significant increase in DoLS applications over the last year and the

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 9



Delayed Transfers of
Care Grant

Children's Services -
Additional Revenue
Grants

Government has recently announced that nationally £25 million
would be made available to local authorities to support the
additional work. This will be paid in the form of a non-recurrent "one
off* grant in 2015/16. Worcestershire's grant will be £254,360 and
will be paid on condition of receipt of a return detailing how
additional funds will be spent.

18. The Department of Health has made available a new ring-
fenced grant to help support local authorities in reducing the
number of recorded Delayed Transfers of Care (DTOC) attributable
to social care. Worcestershire was awarded £520,000 for 2014/15.
The spending of the monies has been tracked by the Department of
Health on a monthly basis.

19. A recent announcement has confirmed an extension to the
grant for April 2015. This additional money is to support the
continuing efforts to reduce DTOC attributable to social care and to
aid the transition into delivery of the Better Care Fund plan.
Worcestershire has been awarded an additional £170,000, bringing
the total allocation to £690,000.

Supporting the implementation of the early years pupil
premium (EYPP) and Integrated Review Readiness Grant

20. New government funding has been allocated to all councils to
help prepare for the introduction of the early years pupil premium
(EYPP). As previously reported to Cabinet, the EYPP worth £50
million in 2015/16, will be given to early years providers who are
delivering the funding entitlement for 3- and 4-year-olds. The
funding equates to up to £300 extra per year for each
disadvantaged child who meets the eligibility criteria.

21. The Department for Education (DfE) is now giving councils an
additional £1.5 million to help make these preparations. It means
that each council with eligible children will receive £10,000 to
support the introduction of the EYPP. The intention is that these
monies will be allocated to raising awareness for parents as well as
implementation of the scheme.

22. The grant determination letter also included £15,384 for
integrated working which is intended to provide support to local
settings as they set up and deliver integrated working on 2 year old
assessment with health practitioners and other key partners such
as children’s centres.

Improving Early Years Outcomes for Children in Disadvantaged
Areas

23. The Council has also been successful in securing a further
£10,000 to take part in the DfE's Improving Early Years Outcomes
for Children in Disadvantaged Areas project. The funding will be
used to support the opening of a new nursery to provide additional
provision for 2 year olds. The proposed provider is based in
Malvern and its services are directed towards families from a

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 10



Capital Programme
Budget Monitoring:
2014/15 Actual
Expenditure as at 31
August 2014

Hoobrook Link Road

disadvantaged background. The funding will be used for training
staff, marketing and promotion for parents, and parenting sessions.

SEND Preparation for Employment Grant

24. Worcestershire has received a further £35,040 as a one off
grant to promote supported internships and other preparation for
employment activity for young people with special educational
needs and disabilities (SEND), which is a critical aspect of the
SEND reforms.

Staying Put Implementation Grant

25. The Children and Families Act 2014 introduced a new duty on
local authorities to support young people to continue to live with
their former foster carers once they turn 18 (the ‘Staying Put’ duty).
This duty came into force on 13 May 2014.

26. The purpose of the grant is to provide support to local
authorities for expenditure in respect of a young person aged 18
and their former foster carer who wish to continue to live together in
a ‘Staying Put’ arrangement. This supported arrangement can
continue until the young person’s 21st birthday. Supporting care
leavers to stay with their former foster carers will allow them to
leave stable and secure homes when they are ready and able to
make the transition to independence. It will also help them enter
adult life with the same opportunities and life prospects as their
peers.

27. The funding amount for 2015/16 is £14.8million nationally and
Worcestershire will receive £157,783. Information regarding funding
amounts for 2016/17 will be made in February 2016.

28. The Council's Capital Budget for 2014/15 totals £147.2 million.
The actual capital expenditure as at Month 11 (28 February 2015)
is £95.2 million or 65% of the budget which is as expected with no
significant issues arising. The rate of capital expenditure incurred in
year is generally in line with expectations.

29.1n 2013 Cabinet authorised the Hoobrook Link Road scheme
which is to be funded through contributions from Worcestershire
County Council, the Department for Transport (Pinch Point), and
through Central Government's approved Growth Deals with the
Worcestershire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and Greater
Birmingham and Solihull LEP. All Growth Deal funding is subject to
successful Assurance Framework due diligence undertaken by
each LEP.

30. Due to market demand inflation, some scheme design changes
and rising land acquisition costs, the estimated cost of the scheme
has increased by around £3.5 million to just over £16 million, this
increase includes a contingency of c.£1 million.

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 11



Children's Services -
Education Capital
Grants

31. In order to achieve the best value for money given these
changes in design and cost, and to maintain the programme, it was
necessary to move forward with enabling works as soon as
possible and the Director of Business Economy and Community in
consultation with the Cabinet Member with Responsibility for
Economy, Skills and Infrastructure have approved, within their
existing authorisation limit, a £0.5 million virement from unallocated
highways capital budgets to progress this scheme.

32. The project team are working with the Council's "Civil
Engineering Term Contractor” to reduce the target cost of the
construction work and are approaching the two Local Enterprise
Partnerships (Greater Birmingham and Solihull LEP and
Worcestershire LEP) for additional funding contributions.

33. Notwithstanding this, the Cabinet Member with Responsibility
for Finance recommends that Cabinet approves:

a) an additional £3.5 million facility is set aside in the Capital
Programme for this scheme. This will enable the Council as
accountable body to the LEP to commit to this scheme now
and maintain the current programme whilst continuing
negotiations with the Local Enterprise Partnerships; and

b) a virement of £3.5 million to cover this facility is made from
the Capital Programme unallocated contingency.

34. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Finance
recommends that the Director of Business, Environment and
Community be authorised to take all necessary steps in
consultation with the Cabinet Member with Responsibility for
Economy, Skills and Infrastructure and the Cabinet Member with
Responsibility for Finance to complete the Hoobrook Link Road
scheme within the approved financial parameters.

35. Cabinet have previously been informed of the capital basic
need grant for schools for 2015/16 and 2016/17 and set out below
is confirmation that the following amounts will be received by the
Council for allocation to Worcestershire schools.

£ 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Basic Need 8,297,145 | 8,712,002 | 8,276,886
Capital Maintenance 4,154,561 | 4,154,561* | 4,154,561*
Devolved Formula 1,064,820 | 1,064,820* | 1,064,820*
Capital (Maintained

schools)

Devolved Formula 204,473 204,473* 204,473*
Capital (VA schools)

Locally Co-ordinated 1,283,016 | 1,283,016 | 1,283,016
Voluntary Aided

Programme (VA

schools)

*Current estimates

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 12




Addition to the
Capital Programme:
Tenbury Wells
Household
Recycling Centre

36. Included in the 2017/18 value for Basic Need is £568,592
relevant to new primary schools which have opened or whole
primary school expansions of 7 year groups in 2013/14.

37. The funding will be allocated to projects that are identified as
priorities against the approved 2015/16 Children's Services Local
Investment Plan. This Plan reflects the Government priorities of
addressing Basic Need issues.

38. The Capital Maintenance grant is to be targeted at those
schools where the building stock requires maintenance,
replacement or refurbishment. Schools across the whole county will
benefit from this funding based on their Asset Management Plan
data.

39. The Director of Children's Services, in consultation with the
Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Children and Families, will
continue the normal process of allocation to specific schemes.
Should additional grant be awarded over and above the estimated
levels in the table above and an update will be given to a future
Cabinet meeting.

40. The planned relocation of Tenbury Household Recycling
Centre (HRC) was included within the Waste Management Service
Contract (WMSC) when it was signed in 1998. The relocation was
proposed in order to increase recycling, divert material away from
landfill and improve the safety for site users.

41. The Council's Contractor, Mercia Waste Management, applied
for planning permission to relocate the facility to the Bromyard
Road Business Park in Tenbury, however this application was
refused on 20 July 2001. Since 2010 there has been growing
support for the relocation of this facility to the Bromyard Road
Business Park in Tenbury, which culminated in planning permission
being granted on 6 November 2014.

42. The intention has always been to deliver a Contract Variation
for the relocation as intended in the 1998 WMSC. It is proposed to
use £2 million of the existing Waste Management Private Finance
Initiative (PFI) reserve in order to fund the capital element of this
development. This will save the Council money on charges that
would be applied under the WMSC and deliver real improvements
in recycling rates across this part of the county.

43. The main benefits resulting from a relocation of the HRC are:

a) An increase in the number of materials that the public will be
able to separate for recycling at the facility, this will increase
the recycling rate from the current level of approximately
37% to in excess of 70%. This significantly reduces the
amount of waste landfilled from this facility and also the
associated disposal cost.

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 13



b) Once relocated this facility would open for an extra day a
week, opening 3 days a week (Thursday, Saturday and
Sunday).

c) The number of materials that the public would be able to
separate for recycling at the facility would be increased from
6 to more than 20.

44. Relocating the facility would free up space at the location of the
existing Tenbury HRC at Palmers Meadow for its original purpose,
which was as a car park, allowing an increased number of car
parking spaces for the town centre.

45. The new facility would be a modern, custom built, split-level
site enabling easier access for the public to deposit their recycling
and improving safety for site users.

46. There would be a visual impact improvement on the entrance
to Tenbury along the B4204 arising from the relocation, because
the site would be moved from this route and placed on a business
park off one of the other main access routes to the town.

47. The PFI Reserve, following this planned allocation of £2 million
will still be sufficient to maintain the set aside for risk as set out in
the December 2013 Cabinet report on the Energy from Waste
Contract Variation.

48. The total capital cost of £2 million will cover:
a) £1.4m construction; and

b) £0.6m planning, design, tendering, project management as
well as project contingency.

49. The value for money of the construction cost has been
benchmarked against similar projects undertaken by other local
authorities. The procurement will be undertaken in accordance with
the provisions set out in the WMSC. The construction work will be
subject to a competitive tender process which is being managed by
our contractor under the WMSC. As a variation to the WMSC our
contractor has the responsibility to deliver the new facility with the
Council role being one of oversight.

50. The Council has agreed with the contractor that should this
project go ahead then the Council will pay the actual capital costs,
therefore benefiting for any reduction in the construction costs
following the tender process.

51. The running costs of the facility will be picked up in the monthly
charges made by the Contractor under the WMSC and will be
contained within current revenue forecasts.

52. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Finance
recommends to Cabinet that it approves the relocation of Tenbury

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 14



Contact Points

Background Papers

Household Recycling Centre and recommends that Council
approves the use of £2 million of the PFI reserve for the relocation
and updates the Capital Programme.

County Council Contact Points
Worcester (01905) 763763, Kidderminster (01562) 822511 or
Minicom: Worcester (01905) 766399

Specific Contact Points for this Report
Sean Pearce, Chief Financial Officer, 01905 766268,
spearce@worcestershire.gov.uk

Sue Alexander, Head of Business Support (Adult & Community
Services), 01905 766942, salexander@worcestershire.gov.uk

Stephanie Simcox, Head of Finance & Resources (Children's
Services), 01905 766342, ssimcox@worcestershire.gov.uk

Rachel Hill, Strategic Commissioner: Major Projects, 01905
768580, rjhill@worcestershire.gov.uk

In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Chief Financial
Officer) the following are the background papers relating to the
subject matter of this report:

Previous Cabinet Resources reports

12 December 2013 Cabinet report on Hoo Brook link road

12 December 2013 Cabinet report on the Energy from Waste
Contract Variation

Cabinet — 16 April 2015

Page 15


mailto:spearce@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:salexander@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:ssimcox@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:rjhill@worcestershire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Scrutiny Report: Integrated Waste
	Cab 20150416 Scrutiny-Integrated waste-app

	5 Resources Report

